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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re : Initiation of show cause 
proceedings against UniDial 
Inco rporated for violation of 
Rule 25-4. 118 , F . A. C., 
Interexchange Ca rrier Selection . 

DOCKET NO . 971483-TI 
ORDER NO . PSC-98-0800-AS-TI 
ISSUED: June 9 , 1998 

The following Commissioners participated in the di s position o f 

this matter : 

BY THE COMMISSION : 

I . BACKGROUND 

JULIA L . JOHNSON , Chairman 
J . TERRY DEASON 
SUSAN F. CLARK 

JOE GARCIA 
E. LEON JACOBS , JR . 

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT 

Unidial Incorporated (UniDial) , Certificate Number 3500 , is a 

provider of interexchange telecommunications service and was 

ce rtificated on December 2 , 1993 . UniDial reported gross operating 

revenues of $2,032,785.7 0 o n its Regulatory Assessment Fee Return 

for the period January 1 , 1997 , through December 31 , 1997 . As a 

provider of interexchange telecommunicatio ns service in Florida , 

UniDial is subject to the rules and regulations of this Commission . 

From January 1, 1996 , unti l April 30 , 1998 , the Division of 

Consumer Affairs closed a total of 64 complaints agains t UniDia l as 

unauthorized carrier change (slamming ) infractions in apparent 

violation of Rule 25- 4 . 118 , Florida Administrative Code . Based o n 

the number of complaints received by the Division of Consumer 

Affairs as a pparent slamming vio lations , we opened this docket to 

investigate whether UniDial should be required to s how cause why it 

should not be fined o r have its certificate canceled , pursuant to 

Sect ion 364.285, Florida Statutes. However , prior to our issuance 

of a s h o w cause order , UniDial s ubmitted an o ffer t o settle the 
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case . (A copy of the settlement offer is attached to this Orde r as 

Attachment A. ) 

II . DISCUSSION 

On January 16, 1998 , UniDial met with our staff to discuss the 

pending show cause case . The company e xplained that during the 

week of May 19, 1997, UniDial received a relatively large order of 

service change requests from a new agent. Due to the size of the 

o rder and the newness of the agent , UniDial decided to sample the 

validity of the letters of authorization (LOAs) . Unfortunately , 

the entire order was processed before the sampling was completed . 

UniDial has since put in place procedures to prevent this timing 

problem i n the future. 

When it realized that the orders were not authorized , UniDial 

prevented any further orders from being processed , contacted o ur 

staff to notify them o f the problem, and hired an independent 

company to contact each affected customer to explain the problem . 

UniDial also s witched the affected customers back to their 
preferred carrier and rerated their calls as well as credited them 

the switching fees . Since that time , UniDial terminated Call 

Central , the new agent who sent in the unauthorized order . 

On January 28, 1998 , UniDial submit ted its offer to sett le 

(Attachment A). In its settlement offer , UniDial agreed to the 

following terms and condit ions . First , for a period of one year, 

UniDial will independently verify 50% of all Florida o rders 

initiated by an LOA . For a six-month period following that , 

Uni~ial will independently verify 25% of all Flo rida orders 

authorized by LOA . Second, for a period of o ne year , UniDial will 

mail an information pac kage with prepaid postcards to 50% of all 

Florida sales generated by telemarketing (and verified by 

independent third party verification) . For a period of six months 

following that , UniDial wil l mail an information package to 25% of 

all Florida orders generated by telemarketing (and verifiAd by 
independent third party verification) . Third , UniDial will 

formally adopt its previously unwritten "Satisfaction Guarantee" 

policy , under which UniDial will incur the primary interexchange 

ca rrier (PIC) change fee to return any customer to his or her 

carrier of choice if , for any reason , t he customer is not satisfied 

with UniDial ' s service . Finally , UniDial will make a cont ribution 
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in the amount of $125,000 to the General Revenue Fund o f the State 
of Florida , with no admission of liability or wrongdoiny . 

I II . CONCLUS ION 

We support UniDial ' s proposal to verify 50% of all Florida 
orders generated by LOA for a one year period followed by 25% for 
a six month period . We believe that this will allow UniDial to 
better evaluate the information on the LOA to reduce the occurrence 
of forgery. we also support Un iDial ' s proposal to ma~l an 
information package to 50% of all florida sales generated by 
telemarketing in addition to third party verification fo r a period 
of one year followed by 25% for a six month period. This is an 
additional step to ensure the customer authorized the change of 
long distance providers . In addition , formally adopting its 
"Satisfaction Guaranteeu policy will ensure that the consume r will 
incur no fee for the unauthorized switching of their long distance 
provider. 

The company has satisfactorily addressed our concerns . 
Moreover , the company has been very cooperative in r esolvi ng all 
issues . Upon consideration , we hereby approve the terms of the 
settlement agreement as found in Attachment A to this Order . 

Based o n the foregoing , it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that the 
settlement pr oposal filed by UniDial Incorporated and attached to 
this Order as Attachment A is hereby approved . It is furthe r 

ORDERED that this docket should remain open pending remittance 
of the $125 , 000 voluntary contribution by UniDial Incorporated. It 
is further 

ORDERED that UniDial Incorporated shall remit the voluntary 
contribution within five business days of the issuance of this 
Order . It is further 

ORDERED that upon UniDial Incorporated ' s remittance of the 
$125 , 000 contribution , this docket may be closed . The $125 , 000 
contributio n shall be forwarded to the Office of t he Comptroller 
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for deposit in the State General Revenue fund pursuant to Section 

364. 285 ( 1) , fl o rida Statutes . 

By ORDER of the fl o rida Public Service Commis sion this 2th 
day of June, ~. 

( S E A L ) 

WPC 

BLANCA S . BAY6, Director 
Division o f Records and Reporting 

Kay fly n , Ch1ef 
Bureau of Records 

NOTICE Of fURTHER PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The florida Public Se rvice Commission is required by Section 

120 . 569 (1) , florida Statutes , to notify part ies of any 

administrative hearing o r judicial review o f Commission o r ders that 

is a vailable under Sections 120 . 57 o r 120 . 68 , fl o rida Statutes , as 

well as the procedures a nd time limits that apply . This not ice 

should not be construed to mean all reques ts for an administrative 

hea ring o r j udicial revie w will be granted or res u lt in the relief 

sought . 

Any party adversely affec ted by t he Commission ' s final a c tion 

in this matter may request : 1) r econsiderat ion o f the decision b y 

filing a motion for reconsideration with the Director , Division of 

Records a nd Reporting , 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee , 
fl orida 32399- 0850 , wi thin f ifteen ( 15) days of the issuance o f 

this order in the f o rm prescribed by Rule 25- 22 . 060 , fl o rida 

Administrative Code ; or 2) judicial revie w by the fl o rida Supre me 
Court in the case of an electric , gas o r t e lepho ne u tility or the 

fi r s t District Court of Appeal in the case of a wate - and/or 

wastewater utility by filing a notic e of appeal wit h the Director , 

Division o f Records and reporting and filing a copy of the notice 

o f appeal and the filing fee with the appropriate court. This 

filing must be completed within thirty (30) days aft er the issuance 

of this o rder , pursuant to Rule 9 . 110 , flo rida Rules of Appella te 

Procedure . The notice of appeal must be i n the form specified in 

Rule 9 . 900(a) , florida Rules o f Appellate Procedure . 
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.1.4 ... J.C T A. . G &UNI 
A T ~ .:> l S l T · A T · LA • 

Via Overnight Delivery 

~r. Rlck Moses 
Flonda Public Service Commission 
2450 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee. FL 32399-0850 

SWIDLER 
-&. ....... -

BERLIN 
C: NAlTiliO 

January 28, 1998 

Re: UniDW, /11c.- DocUt No. 97UIJ 

Dear Mr. Moses: 

ATTACHMENT A 

DlliC T D IAL 
120 2 ) 424 · 71S d 

WAGllll'i i~SW IOLA " C0\4 

. , ,; c ~ r " !: v 

UniDiaJ, Inc., by its undmisned attorneys, respectfully submits its settlement offer tn the 
above-referenced matter. 

UniDiaJ is an interexchanae canier which provides interexchanse service in 48 states. 
lJruDial was certified by the Florida Public Service Commission to provide intrasWe interexchange 
service in Docket No. 930865-TI. on December 2. 1993. Uru.Dial currently provides service to 
approximately 120,000 presubscribed customers nationwide, and to approximately 7,000 customen 
1n Flonda. 

As you know, 67.8% (38 of the 56 complaints closed as of January 22, 1998)1 of the 
complamts received by the Commission arose &om the activity of one asent. Call Centnl.2 t:ruDtaJ 
has lustoncally operated throuJb a network of independent aaenta. UniDial provides traJnins and 
suppon to 1ts agents; aaenta are required to comply with UniDial's policies and procedures regarding 
markettng. tncludins policies reaardins federal and Slate regulation of PIC change requtrements. 
(These marketins auidelines are available for your review if you wish). UniDial has added a direct 
sales force and anticipates that. over time, its direct sales force will substantially supplement 1ts 
1ndependentaaenta. 

Call Central md UniDial entered into a standard A&ent's Aarecment in March 1997. Among 

Althouah the report provided by the Commiuion's Staff indicates 58 closed 
slamrntng complaints, two of those complainta •• Alford (O.S3470P) and Thompson ( I 036.S4P) -­
are not slammtng offenses. Ms. Kelly Bieaalski hu confirmed tlus. 

Of the closed complaints received after May, 1997, 38 of the 39 (97.4%) are 
attnbutable to the acuvtttes of Call Central. 

) 000 K 5Tll1T , N 'W • SUITI ) 00 

VIASH IHCTO I'i , 0 C. 10001 ·) t l 6 
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ATTACHMENT A 

other thmgs. the Agreement subjected Call Central to tennination for "(t]he faa lure of the Agent or 
any Subagent, employee, representative, contractor of Asent to comply wath the pohcaes and 
procedures of UniDiaJ in effect. from time to time includins, without limitation. those regarding 
letters of agency and the prevention of unauthorized switc:hini of Telec.ommunications Servtces." 

During the week of May 19, 1997, Call Central submitted electronically an order of 
approx.amately 5,000 ANTs to be switched to UniDial. Due to the size of the order and relative 
newness of the agent, UniDial 's Senior Vice President ofOperarion.a, Ed Wampler. contacted Call 
Central and requested a sarnplins of the Letters of Authorization ("LOA'} for the phone numbers 
submitted. UnfortUnately. the electronic order wu processed before UniDial persoMel were able 
to venfy the sample LOAs. UniDiaJ now has procedures in place to ensure that this timing problem 
wi II not be repeated. 

As the orders were processed. it quickly became apparent that proper authorization had not. 
in fact. been received for the orders. UniDial took all stepl in its power to rectify the situation. 
tncluding voluntarily contacting you. contactini LECs to stop funher provisionina of the orders, and 
hiring an independent company (Albac:k Maricetins) to contact each affected customer. Call Central 
was quickly terminated. Durins the followins months, UniDial kept the Commission informed cf 
1ts actions and implemented any recommendation.a that you offered. Alback Marketing contacted 
3.089 of the affected customers and informed them of what had happened, and instructed them on 
how to switch back to their preferred canier. Throu&h Alback. UniDiaJ also informed each customer 
that any switching fees assessed by the LEC would be paid by UniDiaJ. that any calls made while 
on UniDial's service would be billed at UniDial's lowest rate (interswe $0.099 per mtnute and 
tnrrastate SO 119 per minute), and that UniDial would credit the difference between this rate and any 
lower rate that customers may have enjoyed with their previous carrier. UniDial issued credit for 
the amount of services provided to affected customers; these c:redits totaled approximately S4S,OOO.J 
A significant number of affected customers were credited in full for their Ions distance usage and 
PIC change fees. 

Further, UniDial has responded quickly to other, non·Call Central related conswner 
complaints, has made every effon to ensure that customers were personally contacted, and offered 
credits where appropriate.• UniDial respectfully submits that it has learned from this ex.penence, 

UniDial hu also worked with the U.S. Poatal lnlpector' s Office investigation to 
locate and prosecute Call Central's President, Mr. Brett Kaye. 

For ex.ample, UniDial refers the Commiuion to the September 16, 1997 letter of 
Glen Powell (complaint 1833130. thankina the Comnuuion for its wiatance in resolv;na hts 
complaint. and noting that UniDial personnel had contacted him. provided a contact name and 
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ATTACHMENT A 

has improved its procedures for venfying ordm, and continues to do so. Without the Call Central 
complaints, UmDial had only one closed slamming complaint since May, 1997. 

UniDial proposes the following terms of settlement: 

1. For a period of one year, UniDial will independently verify 500/o of all Florida orders 
tnitiated by an LOA. For a period of six months following that. UntDtal wtll 
independently verify 25% of all Florida orders authorized by LOA. 

2. For a period of one year, UniDial will mail an information pacoge with prepaid 
postcards to SO% of all Florida sales generated by telemarketing (and venfied by 
independent third party verification).' For a period of six months following that. 
UniDiaJ will mail an information pacoge to 25% of all Florida order$ ·generated by 
telemarketing (and verified by independent third party verification). 

3. UniDiaJ will formally adopt its previously unwritten "Satisfaction Guarantee" policy. 
under which UniDiaJ will incur the PIC change fee to rerum any customer to his or 
her carrier of choice if, for any reason. the customer is not satisfied with t.:mDtal' s 
service. 

4 . UniDial will make a contnbution in the amount of S 125,000.00 to the general 
revenue fund of the State of Florida. with no admission of liability or wrongdotng. 

Additionally, UniDiaJ would be pleased to have a member of the Commission· s Staff vtsit 
tts headquarters in Louisville, Kentucky in order to review UniDial's operanons and provide any 
suggestions for improvements. UniDial would be happy to pay for travel and accommodations t f the 
Comm1ssion feels that sucb a on-site visit would be beneficial. 

We believe that the foreaoina settlement temu and conditions fully and appropriately address 
the salient concerns in this matter. The vast majority of the complaints received were due to the 
actions of one agenL UniDial accepts full responsibility for the conduct of its agent, has terminated 
the agent, and has revised its internal operating procedures to ensure thai no such incident will occur 
tn the future. UniDial recosnizes that the activities of its agent created problems for Florida 
consumers and placed demands on the time and resources of the Commission and its S~. UruDial 

nwnber, and made arrangements for appropriate credits. 

UniDiaJ currently requir.:s that all telemarketing generated orders be venfied by 
an independent third party, in accordance with F.A..C. 25-4.118(2Xc) and 47 C.F.R. §64.1100(c). 
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ATTACHMENT A 

believes that the interests of the pub tic, the Commisaion and UniDial itself can best be served at tlus 
time through settlement. The amount of the voluntary conttibution is significant. reflecting how 
seriously the Corrunission considers unauthorized carrier changes. At the same time, the amount of 
the payment reflects the mitigating factors in this cue, including UniDial's long-standing regulatory 
compliance efforts.. its own early and self-initialed actions to remedy the problem. its attempt (which 
it believes has been succesaful) to resolve ffVery compWilt to the customer's satisfaction. regardless 
of cost, and its efforts to ensure that similar problems do not arise in the future. 

If you have any questions, or wish to discuss this matter further. please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

cc: John Greive, Esq. 

llHll l 

Respectfully submitted, 

P?~_p/.a 
Warren A. Fitch 
Marcy Greene 
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